
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Monday, 16 November 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

This meeting will be held remotely – you can watch on YouTube: 
youtu.be/6ESAyRKXGAQ  

 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair) 
Councillor Christabel Cooper 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
 Tel: 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

Date Issued: 09 November 2020 

https://youtu.be/6ESAyRKXGAQ
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


Agenda – 16 November 2020 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 A roll call will be carried out to confirm attendance and members will 
have the opportunity to declare any interests. 
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 9 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 This meeting is being held remotely via Microsoft Teams. If you would 
like to make a comment or ask a question about any of the items on the 
agenda, either via Teams or in writing, please contact: 
david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: youtu.be/6ESAyRKXGAQ  
 

 

5.   H&F WAY PROGRESS REPORT  10 - 65 

 This report updates the committee on the H&F Way, the Council’s 
innovative internal culture change programme. 
 
 

 

mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
https://youtu.be/6ESAyRKXGAQ


 

6.   WORKFORCE EFFICIENCY - REDUCING AGENCY SPEND  66 - 72 

 This report provides an update on activity being undertaken to reduce 
agency spend. 
 

 

7.   WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITIES  73 - 84 

 This report provides an update on internal learning and development 
opportunities. 
 

 

8.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting is scheduled for the 19th of January 2021 (a change 
from the previously agreed calendar to accommodate remote meetings). 
 

 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 2 September 2020 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rowan Ree (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
Guy Vincent, Zarar Qayyum and Dominic Stanton 
 
Other councillors  
Councillor Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform) 
 
Officers 
Rhian Davies (Director of Resources) 
Emily Hill (Director of Finance) 
Veronica Barella (Chief Digital Officer) 
Nicola Ellis (AD Resident Services) 
Dawn Aunger (AD People and Talent) 
Martin Calleja (AD Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) 
Matthew Sales (AD Programmes and Assurance) 
David Abbott (Head of Governance) 
 
Guests 
Georgina Maratheftis (TechUK) 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair carried out a roll call to confirm attendance. Attendance is listed above. 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 28th of July 2020 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
No public questions were received. 
 
 

5. COUNCIL OF THE FUTURE - TECHUK  
 
The Chair welcomed Georgina Maratheftis, Head of Local Public Services at 
TechUK, to the meeting. She gave a presentation to the committee on TechUK’s 
Council of the Future guide. 
 
Georgina Maratheftis noted that the pandemic had been a multiplier for technology 
adoption and innovation. The sector had shifted very quickly to mass remote working 
and had seen improvements in collaboration through the use of platforms like 
Teams, Zoom, and Skype. Councils had also used digital infrastructure to coordinate 
volunteers to support vulnerable residents who were shielding. 
 
Georgina also spoke about the Local Digital Declaration, a joint endeavour initiated 
by the UK Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), the 
Government Digital Service (GDS), and a collection of local authorities and sector 
bodies from across the UK. The declaration expressed an ambition for local public 
services in the internet age to: 

 design services that best meet the needs of citizens 
 challenge the technology market to offer the flexible tools and services we 

need 
 protect citizens’ privacy and security 
 deliver better value for money 

 
She then highlighted some ways in which Councils could help move this forward: 

 Be a digital champion and empower digital leadership at the executive level 

 Use data to make informed decisions 

 Sign up to the local digital declaration 

 Spearhead a culture of innovation 
 
The Chair asked how GDRP had affected data sharing. Georgina Maratheftis said 
any data sharing would have to take place within data protection rules and officers 
should work with their data protection officer. She added that data could be 
anonymised to ensure that nothing sensitive was shared. Veronica Barella (Chief 
Digital Officer) added that the Council had data sharing agreements in place around 
how data was handled and stored. 
 
The Chair asked what a ‘smart city’ was, and if there was a danger of it being used 
as a Trojan horse for privatisation. Georgina Maratheftis said she preferred the term 
‘smart place’ and that the idea was about considering what technology could do to 
help enable the vision for a place. For example, in Camden there were booths where 
visitors can get free Wi-Fi and make calls. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked about the implications of smart cities and increased 
automation on employment and job security. He also asked whether a smart city 
would provide services on top of the traditional local authority provided services. 

Page 5

about:blank
about:blank


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Georgina Maratheftis said a smart city should start with the local authority and their 
vision for a digital council across the place. In terms of the impact of technology on 
jobs – she said it was important to upskill the organisation and better equip workers 
and young people to have the digital skills needed for the jobs of the future. 
 
Martin Calleja (AD Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) noted the complexity of the 
local government technology market and asked how the Council could encourage 
high quality procurement and investment. Georgina Maratheftis said TechUK worked 
with the sector and ran events to better educate them and ensure they could have 
more informed, meaningful conversations with local authorities. She said it was 
important for technology providers to see local authorities as partners, not just 
customers. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent felt that few of the technology ideas referenced in the agenda 
papers seemed to improve the day-to-day activities of the Council like housing 
repairs or tackling anti-social behaviour. Councillor Christabel Cooper disagreed and 
said she could see huge benefits in the ‘single view of a resident’. A common 
frustration for residents contacting the Council was that they were pushed from 
department to department with little or no data sharing or tracking so they had to 
repeat their issue multiple times to different people. It would also be more efficient for 
residents to be able to interact with the Council online rather than having to wait on 
hold to a call centre for example. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Service Reform) said a priority 
for the Council was to be inclusive and co-produce services with disabled people. He 
asked if there were any examples of co-production with users on digital services. 
Georgina Maratheftis said TechUK was putting together a database of local 
government innovation to share examples of good practice. She added that Croydon 
were currently working on a digital inclusion project with Leeds – more information 
can be found on the Croydon Digital blog: croydon.digital/2020/09/16/leeds-and-
croydon-are-creating-a-digital-inclusion-toolkit/  
 
Veronica Barella agreed that technology should be seen as the enabler for 
outcomes. The Council’s new resident access and improvement programme was 
designing services from a resident point of view – looking at the outcomes first then 
looking for appropriate technology solutions. 
 
The Chair asked if, given the history of public sector procurement failures, there was 
a risk of public sector institutions being scared to be first to try new things, and if that 
was stifling innovation. Georgina Maratheftis said it was an issue that had been 
raised by TechUK’s members, but the relationship between councils and suppliers 
was evolving. TechUK was encouraging councils to have honest conversations with 
suppliers about needs and expectations at the start of the process, undertake 
thorough market engagement and, where appropriate, start small and scale up. 
 
The Chair thanked Georgina Maratheftis from TechUK for attending the committee. 
He then summarised the discussion, noting that new technology should never be a 
goal in and of itself, but that councils should focus on the outcomes and resident 

Page 6

about:blank
about:blank


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

services they wanted to achieve, and then work back to find the most effective way 
to deliver them. 
 

6. TECHNOLOGY IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT  
 
NOTE: This item was taken after Item 7. 
 
Veronica Barella (Chief Digital Officer) presented the report and the Council’s digital 
and information strategy and the following points were noted: 

 The Council’s goal was to enable the delivery of the council's priorities for 
residents, local businesses and staff through the innovative provision of digital 
and information services 

 The Resident Experience Access Programme will modernise the Council’s 
public-facing services – from the more transactional ones which will be 
redesigned and automated end-to-end, to building a single front door for 
Social Care, Children’s Services and Housing. 

 The Council has a Digital Board in place to provide strategic leadership, 
engage with council members, internal services and other relevant 
stakeholders to deliver transformation and key priorities 

 The Council was committed to open up data and make decision based on 
data. 

 
The Chair asked if the Council had an ethical framework in place for use of 
technology and data. He noted that the company he worked for kept a register of the 
algorithms they used and who was responsible for them. The algorithms were 
regularly reviewed and assumptions tested. Veronica Barella said Digital Services 
did intend to set up a register of algorithms. 
 
The Chair, noting that the Council held a great deal of data about residents and 
services, asked how robust its security procedures were. Veronica Barella said the 
Council regularly reviewed and tested its cyber-security procedures. Systems were 
in place to protect users and their data. It was a major risk area for the organisation 
and was taken very seriously. 
 
The Chair asked if there had been an increase in attacks this year. Veronica Barella 
said there had, and it had been a problem for all major organisations. 
 
The Chair asked if there were disaster recovery procedures in place – could the 
Council retrieve critical data if there was a major incident? Veronica Barella said the 
Council and third-party contractors had processes in place and regular exercises 
were carried out to test preparedness. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked how much of the Council’s data was still stored in 
local file systems and servers, rather than in cloud-based servers. Veronica Barella 
said most of the Council’s major systems were now hosted externally with third party 
providers but there was still some data on local servers. All new procurements were 
hosted externally to reduce risk in case of an attack. 
 
 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

7. OVERVIEW OF THE RESIDENT EXPERIENCE AND ACCESS PROGRAMME  
 
NOTE: This item was taken after Item 5. 
 
Martin Calleja (AD Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) presented the report on the 
Council’s Resident Experience and Access Programme (REAP) – a flagship initiative 
for driving transformation, improved access, reliability and quality across all front-line 
services. He noted that the programme was moving from the design stage to the 
delivery stage. Phase one of the programme was focused on universal services like 
council tax, parking, and benefits. Phase two of the programme was focused on 
targeted support services like adult social care and children’s services. 
 
Martin Calleja explained that the Council was currently delivering around 30 percent 
of services digitally and the aim was to deliver over 60 percent of services digitally. 
The programme would be delivered over five years with the majority of investment in 
the first three. Officers estimated savings of £9.28m. 
 
The Chair welcomed the programme. He noted that while calling the Council’s noise 
and nuisance number he learned that the call centre wasn’t based in the borough. 
He asked where the Council got those services from and how many third-party 
providers the Council used. Martin Calleja said he understood that the service was in 
the process of being desegregated from RBKC and the current team worked 
remotely. 
 
The Chair asked if the programme had been co-produced with residents. Martin 
Calleja said officers had reached out to residents through various channels and five 
residents with specific skills had been involved to give feedback. The team would 
also be working with residents through existing routes on a service by service basis. 
The Chair said it was important to testing the programme with residents to ensure 
the Council was getting it right. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked how officers could ensure they got feedback 
from residents who were less tech savvy. Martin Calleja said they had reached out 
and would continue to try to get a stronger resident voice into the programme. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent said he agreed with the goals of the programme but asked 
officers what this investment would do to improve common service problems like 
housing repairs or tackling anti-social behaviour. Martin Calleja said the services 
mentioned were in phase two and hadn’t been modelled yet, though broad design 
principles were in place. Phase two design work was due to be completed this year 
and delivery was due to start in 2021. Veronica Barella added that the Council was 
already working on a long-term repairs model – the service had been brought back in 
house and software had been procured to help triage requests and provide a portal 
for residents to see information about their repairs and upcoming appointments. This 
work would join up with the work happening in the REAP in phase two. 
 
Councillor Vincent expressed concern that phase two of the programme had not yet 
been fully thought through. He noted that the projected £3.4m of savings per year 
would mean a workforce reduction of around 50 people and asked what services that 
those people were providing would be delivered by software. Martin Calleja said the 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

savings were based on detailed modelling work – the programme would realise 
savings by bringing together services, reducing the workload, and lowering 
transaction costs. 
 
Councillor Vincent asked if there was a project plan with clear milestones that the 
committee could track to ensure it was delivered on time and on budget. 
Martin Calleja said following Cabinet approval in October there would be monthly 
progress reports that could be shared with members. He added that there was a 
board governance structure in place and the senior leadership team reviewed 
progress on a monthly basis. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked when the first visible change would appear for 
residents (on the website, an app, digitised parking etc.). Martin Calleja said the first 
major change would be parking and council tax. Members asked that the delivery 
schedule be circulated. 

ACTION: Martin Calleja 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum, noting the target of 60 percent of resident interactions to 
be digital by April 2023, asked if there were similar targets for other routes. Some 
residents weren’t able to use digital means – was there any way of identifying those 
people and providing support? Martin Calleja said there was a breakdown of target 
channel mix across all major services on page 86 of the agenda. 
 
The Chair summarised the discussion and said he was keen to see this programme 
delivered and requested regular progress updates. 
 
 

8. H&F WAY PROGRESS REPORT  
 
This item was deferred to a later meeting. 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.10 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
 : 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:     Public Services Reform Policy & Accountability Committee 
 
Date:  16 November 2020 
 
Subject:  H&F Way Progress Report   
 
Report of:  Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People & Talent     
 
SLT Member: Rhian Davies, Director of Resources 
 

 
Summary 
 
The H&F Way is the Council’s innovative internal culture change programme, where 
staff work together to shape how we do things to be at our best, by creating a staff-led 
movement for change.  Their work is informed by staff feedback from staff engagement 
surveys and reviews.   
 
The H&F Way programme is managed by People and Talent with the support of 70 staff 
volunteers across 5 working groups – focussing on behaviours, an inclusive workforce, 
a healthy workplace, reward and recognition and appraisal/performance.    
 
This report updates the committee on the background to the H&F Way, progress made 
to date and plans for taking the H&F Way programme forward.    
 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. That the report be noted.    
 
 
Wards Affected: ALL 
 
 
 

H&F Priorities 
 

Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Priorities  

Creating a 
compassionate 
council 

The H&F Way seeks to improve 
workplace behaviours, develop a healthy 
workplace, create an inclusive 
workplace, improve how we appraise 
performance and consider future reward 
and recognition initiatives.  It is an 
organisational culture change 
programme based on doing things with 
our staff, not to them. 
 

Taking pride in H&F The H&F Way’s purpose is to make 
positive changes to organisational 
culture that will in turn increase 
employee engagement, morale, job 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



 
 

satisfaction and pride in working for 
LBHF 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director, Transformation, Talent and Inclusion (TTI) 
Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People and Talent 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report – none 
 

 
 
Detailed information  
 

1. A positive organisational culture is vital for our continued success. We are one of the 
few local authorities that have invested in the ‘Best Companies’ employee engagement 
survey. This survey provides us with our employee engagement levels and detailed 
reports and insight into our staff experience.  Best Companies informs the Sunday 
Times Best Companies to work for list and associated accreditations, they have been 
established for 20 years with over 5 million records, widely recognised and respected as 
the ‘standard’ for employee engagement. 
 

2. The H&F Way is the Council’s innovative internal culture change programme where 
staff work together to shape how we do things to be at our best, by creating a staff-led 
movement for change.  Their improvement activity is informed by the feedback from the 
staff survey and more recently, wellbeing surveys and H&F Way focus groups and staff 
conversations that were held across the council in October 2019.   
 

3. The H&F Way was created to increase staff engagement which was at 53% in the 2018 
annual staff survey. We aim for 75% employee engagement or above to reach the 
benchmark of a highly engaged (best companies) workforce.  This is important as high 
engagement is a measure of high productivity; a significant driver of organisational 
success.   
 

4. People and Talent commissioned support from an external organisation called ‘The 
Campaign Company’ (who previous worked with the Cabinet to help create our values 
and priorities) to help inform our culture change work, starting with an independent 
review of what our staff said and felt about working for H&F Council.  This tested and 
reaffirmed that the feedback from the 2018 staff survey was still valid and that our staff 
were keen to have a stronger voice and be part of making change happen – doing 
things ‘with our staff not to them’.   

 
5. The H&F Way programme is managed by People and Talent and resourced by 70 staff 

volunteers across 5 working groups. The groups are designed to address the feedback 
in the staff engagement survey and the H&F Way Report. 
  

6. The H&F Way report (Appendix 1) is the independent report prepared by The 
Campaign Company setting out five key themes set in the context of H&F vision, values 
and people strategy. These themes were identified through engaging with staff at drop-
in sessions held at 3 locations across 8 days in October 2019, 22 focus groups and 
through an online survey. These themes are:  

Page 11



 
 

 Behaviours that create a great place to work are genuinely and consistently 

 understood, lived and recognised 

 An inclusive workplace where everybody’s needs are recognised and respected 

and all have the same opportunities to be involved in decisions and career 

progression and access to tools to do the best job that they can 

 A healthy workplace to help make our workplace healthier, happier and more 

productive 

 Appraising performance where regular review meetings are meaningful & 

valued whilst simple and focussed on recognising contributions 

 Reward and recognition of everyone’s contribution in a way which makes them 

feel valued and is seen as fair, transparent, flexible and consistent 

 
7. The H&F Way culture change programme is a staff-driven ‘change movement’ which 

focusses on the 5 themes and seeks to deliver on the following aims: 
 

 Highly engaged staff that express higher levels of satisfaction  

 Significant improvements with productivity, wellbeing, recruitment, retention and 

equality at work.   

 A greater understanding of our unique organisational character and identity – 

what makes us the best, what are our biggest challenges, how do we best tackle 

them and what makes us different and special 

 
8. The Chief Executive, Kim Smith, is the project sponsor for the H&F Way and provides 

strategic leadership support for enabling its success. Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director, 
Transformation, Talent and Inclusion (TTI) remains accountable for the H&F Way with 
Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People & Talent, taking the lead from a programme 
perspective in ensuring that objectives are met, project outcomes are delivered, and 
benefits are realised.  All culture change proposals are reviewed at the H&F Way 
Programme Board, comprising the Assistant Director TTI, the Strategic Head of People 
and Talent and the H&F Way leads for each of the 5 working groups.  
 

9. The  H&F Way Programme Board meets monthly (with the exception of a 5-month gap 
earlier in the year due to Covid-19) to set direction, manage cross cutting opportunities, 
discuss the viability of the work plan for each group and across all groups, decide what 
to stop, start or continue and put forward ideas and proposals to SLT. The leads 
contribute to a monthly highlight report and any decisions are taken to SLT for 
discussion and approval. 
 

10. The programme follows our programme management office (PMO) processes. Due to 
Covid we have stepped the H&F Way back into the design stage in October 2020 to 
ensure that H&F Way staff activity supports essential business need as part of the 
People Plan and Covid-19 recovery planning.   
 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

11. The H&F Way has no end date as it’s about changing our culture. The first phase is 
expected to complete by March 2021.  Priority themes will then be reviewed following 
staff feedback via the next staff annual survey which we plan to run in December 2020.  
Due to the cost of the Best Companies survey we plan to run the next staff survey 
inhouse by introducing regular digital Pulse Surveys to generate our employee 
engagement % and insights. 
 
This report provides an overview of progress made to date and priorities for the 
continuing programme.    
 
Progress to date  
 

12. Following the H&F Way launch workshop on 26 November 2019, 5 action groups, 
aligned to one of the themes were established. The groups are made up of 70 staff 
volunteers of varying experiences and skills but with a similar passion to make a 
difference. Rather than setting roles within the group by traditional grade and title 
hierarchy, people selected their roles, including that of group leads, according to their 
passion, self-assessment of their skills and qualities and understanding of others in the 
group.   
 

13. A “Let’s Talk Culture” workshop was held in January 2020 with the Leadership Forum 
(Assistant Directors and Directors) to engage them and identify what changes they 
could own and lead through behavioural nudges, quick wins and short and medium-
term change activity. Feedback on the H&F Way and how to improve links with 
departmental priorities was sought from the Managers’ Forum (top 150) held in 
February. A key observation was how the H&F Way programme and the People 
Strategy align and relate.   
 

14. During the early months of the pandemic (March-June 2020) the H&F way group activity 
was stood down, but they continued to network virtually and support colleagues online 
through MS Teams.  Although normal meetings were suspended each group still acted 
as a ‘staff voice’ and sounding board to assist the People and Talent team with the huge 
challenge of maintaining wellbeing and resilience of our workforce. 
 

Page 13



 
 

15. Until mid-March 2020, H&F Way workshops were run every 4-6 weeks which allowed all 
H&F Way group volunteers to come together to share progress, achievements, advice 
and support. Monthly meetings with group leads were restarted on 15 July with a whole 
group session held on 9 September. 
 

16. Following the whole group session in September (40 staff attended), the Strategic Head 
of People and Talent organised meetings with each of the leads and each of the H&F 
Way working groups have now provided their top 3 priorities to be delivered within the 
next 6 months.  These priorities align closely to the People Plan. 

 
17. Contributions that have been made by the H&F Way groups in 2020 include: 

 

 Appraising performance group – designed the new ‘Appraisal Lite’ 

performance conversation document (appraisal) to replace the traditional 

performance management appraisal form.  This took into account the time 

constraints placed on staff during the pandemic but the need, possibly more than 

ever, to continue encouraging performance and development.  An online, fit for 

the future, appraisal solution will be designed for 2021. 

 Healthy Workplace group – researched a Healthy Workplace charter to 

inform best practice for building resilience and staff wellbeing.  The group are 

also in the process of launching a new ‘Virtual Communities’ networking site. 

 Reward and recognition group – acted as a sounding board for People and 

Talent on special recognition for front line workers.  The group are involved in 

developing alternative options to the annual Star awards and developing virtual 

recognition solutions. 

 Inclusive Workplace group – created an equalities action plan that is being 

developed to take account of more recent events and to align with work across 

London on race equality. Additionally, the group has been active in reviewing and 

inputting into the improvements that are being delivered in respect of our 

inclusive recruitment offer (inclusive recruitment, induction, policies and 

onboarding). 

 Behaviours group – created a values-led behaviour framework. This is 

something we hope to take forward later this year so that managers and staff 

understand what is expected of them as an employee of H&F Council. The 

values activity will complement the launch of the ‘Role of the Manager’. 

 
Reframing the H&F Way due to Covid-19 
 

18. A H&F way volunteers virtual event took place on 9 September 2020 to regroup and 
reframe the H&F Way working groups and to keep all our existing and new volunteers 
highly engaged.  Emerging group action plans will be considered to take the H&F Way 
forward and to realign the focus with the Road to Recovery (Covid-19) programme.  
 

19. Key elements of the workshop included: 
 

 Building capacity within the groups to increase staff involvement  

 Identify cost & benefits and new implementation plans  

 Develop communication and staff engagement work to support culture change 

Page 14



 
 

 Refine short, medium- and longer-term outcomes and success measures across 

all groups  

     
Developing a corporate strategy for delivering the full scale of benefits of the H&F 
Way 
 

20. The work of the H&F way groups is underpinned by the People Strategy and People 
Plan and will continue to be informed by staff engagement surveys, the new ways of 
working (WoW) staff survey and staff wellbeing surveys. The future H&F Way 
programme plan to support further cultural change as a result of Covid and new ways of 
working is in development. 
  
What’s next? 
  

21. Staff see the H&F Way as an opportunity to make a difference, to have a voice in 
improving the employee experience at H&F and many see the working groups as a 
development and networking opportunity. Trade Union representatives are fully 
supportive, and some have become active H&F Way group volunteers. We have a 
dedicated area on the intranet and staff have taken in part in short videos to say to staff 
why the H&F Way matters to them. We will continue to increase awareness through a 
‘you said, we did’ campaign. 
 

22. Independent monitoring and evaluation through informal feedback, pulse and staff 
surveys   plus a review of recruitment and retention rates and workforce analysis will 
inform focus and pace of change. Measures to assess delivery of the programme are 
currently being developed. 

 
23. We are reviewing terms of reference for the 5 groups and confirming their priority 

activity for the next 6 months. This is likely to include supporting People and Talent with 
the following areas of work: 
 

 New ways of working – e.g. fit for purpose systems and processes for 

homeworkers  

 Values-led behaviours framework 

 The role of the manager guide 

 Inclusive recruitment, induction and onboarding processes 

 Helping to make co-production everyone’s business 

 Customer service training for staff – an improved learning and development offer  

 Buddy/mentoring scheme for all staff (initiated by World Class Managers for 

managers) 

 Staff recognition ideas 

 Appraisal for senior managers 

 Wellbeing and resilience for the future of work  

 
24. New H&F Way staff volunteers are being encouraged to join one of the existing 5 H&F 

Way groups to maintain momentum and keep the core number of volunteers high. 
 
 
Appendices 
 

Page 15



 
 

Appendix 1 - The H&F Way; Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement” report, 
produced by The Campaign Company, October 2019 
 

Page 16



  

 

Page 17



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Page 18



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 21

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 22



 

“Behaviours are the root cause of everything – 

we need to get these right if we really want to 

be the best.” 

 

Page 23



Trust 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

“Trust me to do my job in the way that I think will work – that’s what I was 

employed to do.” 

“Trusting my judgement and involving me in decisions about my work means 

we can work collaboratively and focus on getting the best results.” 

“It works both ways . . . if a manager is checking up on you when you’re 

working from home, you feel they don’t trust you . . . but you end up not 

trusting them either. It’s not healthy and it’s not productive” 

 

Page 24



Respect 

 

Open, honest and responsible 

“We should respect hot-desking. No-one should ever be told that they’re not 

allowed to sit somewhere.”  

“We share desks, meeting rooms, kitchen areas and other spaces – it’s just basic 

manners and respect for those who use them after us to keep it neat and tidy.”  

 

“Everyone should be respected, no matter what 

their role or status. 

Page 25



“We know that the Council has got to be “ruthlessly financially efficient”. So, 

let’s have honest conversations about what this means in practice. We can 

be part of the solution not the problem.” 

“ We need more open adult – adult conversations. Sometimes, we need to 

understand the reasoning behind decisions and not just be told the decision. 

We’re more likely to respect both the decision and the decision-maker then.” 

“If we were more open, people would have to take more responsibility and 

there would be less blame and shame thrown around.”   

“Honesty is the best policy AND the best way to behave.” 

 

“Actions to close the ‘say-do’ gap should start at the top of the organization – 

role modelling good behaviour would be a great place to start.”  

“Kim is really accessible. She walks around everywhere, takes time to chat to 

people and knows all of our names.” 

“It would be good if all the Directors fronted cross-organisational stuff –I don’t 

think I know anyone other than mine.”  

Page 26



 

• 

• 

• 

“The appraisal process would be a valuable use of everyone’s time if we 

had meaningful targets; regular feedback; more conversations and less 

paperwork; there was a focus on people’s development as well as 

performance; and if it was used as an opportunity to recognize and 

thank us for what we’ve done.” 

“Performance isn’t something that should be reviewed and considered once a 

year.” 

“It’s a tick-box exercise.” 

“It’s a bit of a joke. I haven’t had one in years. And I recently found out that 

Directors received a bonus based on the fact that all appraisals within their teams 

had been done.” 

“There’s got to be a process that allows us to reflect, monitor and improve. Good 

managers these types of conversations at monthly one-to-ones and not just at the 

appraisal meetings.”  

 

Page 27



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 28



• 

• 

 

Page 29



 

“Tell me when I’m doing well not just when I’m not.” 

“Say ‘thank you’ more often and reward me by showing trust.” 

“Let’s have fair and consistently applied processes (public and private) that 

don’t just recognise ‘top’ but also recognises and rewards ‘most improved’ 

and potential talent.” 

“Rewards don’t just have to be about money – although it would be nice if 

it were! But we know that the impact of austerity is still here so being able 

to work flexibly or having a Director say “thank you” for my work is 

sometimes just as valuable.”  

 

“We’ve recently introduced individual and team targets and I’ve used some 

money in my budget to reward these. I give a voucher to the top individual 

and a voucher for the top team to spend on a team lunch.  It’s acted as a real 

incentive and we’ve seen improvements in overall performance and targets 

as a result.” 

“We don’t even get a ‘thank you’ in our team.” 

 

Page 30



“We should embed a thank you culture across the organisation. Sometimes a 

gesture like that is all that’s needed to motivate someone or make someone’s 

day.” 

“Our Star awards are great but it’s too expensive and feels a bit exclusive 

as a result. I was so disappointed not to be part of my team’s celebrations 

but I know they had to keep an eye on costs.” 

“The system for nominating is unfair – I could nominate you and you could 

nominate me and that’s it , we’ve won.” 

“You see people being recognised and rewarded for doing their job rather 

than anything that appears to be over and above. There needs to be more 

transparency about how the awards are decided.” 

“It might be good to have awards that recognise achievement outside 

work – for example, in the community, for charities or local schools.” 

 

Page 31



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 32



 

• 

• 

• 

“A healthy workplace is where the physical, social and cultural environment 

is cared for.” 

“The physical environment has an impact on our well-being: there should be 

common standards across each site to make sure we have the basics – a 

safe functioning place to work.” 

“A collaborative and supportive workplace where we look out for each 

other.” 

“We need to commit to and respect work-life balance. It will make us more 

productive in the end.” 

 

“Being able to work from home has really helped my stress levels – not just because 

it means I’m not stressed out by the time I get here but because I can work on 

reports in peace and quiet. There is no quiet space here [145 King Street].” 

“It’s really important that each site respects the staff kitchen / social areas. Having 

meetings in the Main Hall [Shortlands] during lunch-time means we don’t get the 

opportunity to have a break with our colleagues.”  

 

Page 33



“Managers are not applying the flexible working policies consistently – some 

managers approve all requests, others approve none. Some “check up” several 

times a day when their staff are working from home: others trust them to get 

on with it.” 

 

• Showing 

• Teams 

• Respect 

• Encourages 

• Staff 

• Success  

“We should be encouraging a collaborative and supportive workplace 

culture where people look out for each other.”  

“We should provide more “stress-management” solutions at work 

including yoga, Pilates, desk massages; discounted membership to the 

Virgin Active gym at Shortlands. etc.” 

“Let’s mean what we say when talking about work-life balance – let’s have 

a cut-off point for responding to out of hours e-mails for example.” 

“We need to do more fun stuff and encourage people to get to know each 

other better. We missed out on a ’social’ event when we moved to our new 

spaces earlier this year. Maybe we could make up for it at Xmas.” 

 

 

Page 34



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 35



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

“An inclusive workplace is one where you are involved in the decisions that 

affect you and where your opinion counts.” 

“It’s about having the same access to opportunities to help you progress as 

your colleagues.” 

“It’s when you have access to the tools that can help you do your job.” 

“It’s a place where everybody’s needs are recognised and respected – and 

that can be cultural, intellectual, physical, mental and even self-esteem.” 

“It’s about knowing what’s going not just to be nosey but because it 

means we can support each other better.” 

  

 

Page 36



• 

• 

“We need to think and work like an H&F family. There needs to be more 

opportunities for us to get to know each other and respect each other.” 

“More flexible-working practices will help us get a better work-life balance. 

We’d be more productive as a result and probably nicer people to work with. It 

means I might also get to play sometimes with my colleagues too.” 

“There needs to diversity/equalities training for all - starting with managers 

and decision makers.” 

“Raising awareness of bias (both conscious and unconscious) will lead to more 

inclusive thinking, conversations and behaviours.” 

 “Let’s look at nurturing and promoting our own people rather than always 

looking at consultants / agency staff as short-term fixes. It will be cheaper in 

the long-run.” 

“Stuff like this is good . . . inviting us to have our say on how things are done 

around here. This is the H&F Way of doing things – asking, listening, taking 

action.” 

 

Page 37



• 

 

Page 38



 

• 

• 

• 

“I feel I’ve had conversations like this before and nothing’s happened. I can see that 

Kim is genuine about this and I’ll support her if she wants changes to be made. I just 

hope that we stick to it this time.” 

 

“Closing the ‘say do’ gap is going to be a priority if we’re going to get people believing 

we’re serious about change.” 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



 

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



 

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



 

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



 

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Public Services Reform Policy and    

  Accountability Committee   
 
Date:    16 November 2020 
 

Subject:   Workforce efficiency: reducing agency spend   

 
Report of:    Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People and Talent  
 
Responsible Director: Rhian Davies, Director of Resources   
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides an update on activity being undertaken to reduce agency spend.  

The report provides an overview of actions being taken, demonstrates the trends of 

progress and outlines next steps.  The Council’s overarching aim is a 50% annual 

reduction in agency spend by 31 March 2021, bringing us from the top quartile spend 

to the lower quartile of spend across London borough benchmarks. 

 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. That the committee notes the progress made and plans going forward. 
 

 
 
Wards Affected 
None 
 
 

H&F Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Priorities  

Creating a compassionate council Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s vision to improve employment 
and career pathways opportunities for the 
local community and the workforce ‘grow 
your own’ initiatives.  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s objectives of being ruthlessly 
financial efficient in reducing agency spend 
by 50%. 

Taking pride in H&F Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s priority of taking pride in H&F by 
offering internal and external opportunities 
for employment and personal development 
which aligns with the vision of making H&F 
a great place to work. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 6



 
Contact Officer: 
Name:  Mary Lamont   
Position: Strategic Head of People & Talent   
Email:  mary.lamont@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report - None 
 

 
 
Background  

 

1. The main source of the information contained in this report is drawn from the 

new workforce dashboard, a Business Intelligence application that was 

introduced to the strategic leadership team (SLT) at the beginning of July 2020.  

The data feed for the workforce dashboard comes directly from the HR self-

service system, Integrated Business Centre (IBC). Data sets have also been 

collated from information provided by our agency provider, Pertemps and 

Corporate Finance. 

 

2. Workforce data sets referred to in this report are up to and including 30 

September 2020 (Quarter 2).  Data sets relating to spend have been validated 

by finance colleagues. 

 

Measurement/performance  
 
3. The total agency spend for 2019/20 was £25m.  The target reduction for 

2020/21 is £12.5m (50% reduction) by 31st March 2021.  Trends have been 

identified throughout the report to demonstrate the performance of H&F and to 

highlight the distance travelled from initial baselines as well as the direction of 

travel.  Throughout the report there is a narrative which seeks to provide a 

commentary on the data produced in each area with recommendations as to 

possible management action.  

 

4. It should be noted that the agency reduction programme reduces workforce 

costs by reducing the overall Council paybill.  This is a cost reduction 

programme.  There are no separate agency budgets held by services.  

Departments manage a revenue staffing budget and this funds both a 

permanent and contingent (agency) workforce.  

 

Key headlines quarter 2 
 

 By the end of Q2 agency spend for 20/21 amounted to £9.36m, against a 

projection of £12.5m agency spend by year end.   

Page 67



 Although 75% of the projected annual agency target spend was spent by the 

end of Q2, departmental commitments (planned agency staff exit dates) 

provide assurance that the annual reduction in spend by the end of March 

2021 can be achieved.  We plan to see a steep decline in agency usage in Q3 

and Q4.   

 Agency spend reduced from £1.5m to £1.2m per month during Q2. 

 Agency headcount reduced by the end Q2 to 338, compared to 515 in 

January 2020. 

 Agency staff as a % of total headcount reduced from 15.63% to 14.26% in 

September 2020. 

 There was a reduction of 2 agency assignments which were over £300 per 

day from 40 to 38 in Q2. 

 Monthly Resource Management Board sessions are held with every 

Department Management Team with the Chief Executive and the resourcing 

specialist in People and Talent, to scrutinise agency spend and recruitment.  

 The impact on critical resources of the second wave of Covid is being 

resourced wherever practicable by the redeployment of exiting staff.  

 
Council establishment 

 
5. Chart 1 gives a summary of the workforce as at 30th September 2020.  

Workforce headcount is currently 2,034 (1,895 Full Time Equivalent) compared 

to 1,959 in Q1 and 1,976 in Q2.   Table 1 provides information on the 

percentage of agency compared to the directly employed workforce. 

6. It was accepted from the outset that there would be some movement from 

agency to permanent or fixed term as the agency reduction programme took 

effect.  It is necessary to retain specialist skills whilst acknowledging that upon 

onboarding agency staff, the costs associated with retention are significantly 

lower.   

7. The impact of movement of agency workers to permanent or fixed term posts 

continues to be closely monitored.  Reference Chart 2.  It should be noted that 

the increase to establishment during 18/19 was predominantly due to the 

insourcing of two services, housing repairs and facilities management. 

 

 

Chart 1 – workforce headcount 

 

Page 68



 

 
Table 1 – percentage of agency staff against H&F  
 

 
Chart 2 – impact of agency reduction on headcount 

 
 
Agency usage  
 
8. Our overarching aim is a 50% annual reduction in agency spend over 12 

months in 2020/21 from £25m to £12.5m spend, bringing us from the top 

quartile spend to the lower quartile of spend across London borough 

benchmarks. 

 

9. Chart 3 provides reflects projected agency spend against agency reduction 

commitments from each department.  The commitments reflect an agency 

worker count of 289 by September. We are currently at 338. However, we 

remain confident that the commitments (planned agency exits) for Quarter 3 will 

address the shortfall.  It needs to be acknowledged that there may be periods 

of influx of new agency workers which will be required to address emerging 

issues, an example of this has been the need to bring in specialist cleaning 

operatives to ensure the safety of our workplaces.  Reducing agency spend in 

the first half of the year was slowed by Covid and partly due to managing exit 

arrangements. 

 

Total 
headcount 

2474 2453 2442 2389 2368 2342 2309 2308 2372 

Page 69



 

Chart 3 – agency reduction commitments by month (note the slight upturn in March 2021 reflects the 
fact that there are less days in February however the worker count by month shows a reduction of 1). 

 
10. Chart 4 shows the 50% reduction goal against agency spend as well as the 

moving goal over the 12-month period.  Also shown are the commitments from 

each of the departments between now and the end of March 2021.  These 

commitments are being monitored on a monthly basis through check and 

challenge sessions led by the Senior Leadership Team. 

 
Chart 4 – agency spend projection 

 

11. We are monitoring closely all new assignments against existing agency 

numbers.  Subject to emerging factors, we are assured that these commitments 

will be met. 

 
12. In Q1 for 2020/21 the Council spent £5.07m (40.6%) of its £12.5m projected 

annual agency spend.  Q2 spend was £4.29m (34.3%), indicating that £9.36m 

(75%) of the £12.5m target budget has already been spent.  In the event that 

the current rate of spend continues, the projected spend over the whole 

financial year would be estimated at £18m which would be a reduction of £7m. 

That said, we have been given commitments by departmental leads of the 

reduction in agency usage for each of their respective service areas (refer to 

chart 3) and on the basis of those commitments, the agency spend during Q3 

and Q4 should reduce significantly and we should still meet our targeted 

reduction in spend. 

 

Page 70



13. The targets have been made clear to all officers and departments are 

committed to meet them.  People and Talent continues to monitor the progress 

on a monthly basis and has committed resources to support colleagues to 

implement their agency reduction plans.   

 

Actions taken & next steps 
 

14. In order to address the pace of reduction of agency usage, the following 

protocols remain in place: 

• Monthly ‘check and challenge’ Resource Management Board (RMB) 

sessions with the Senior Management Team led by Chief Executive. 

• Detailed agency reduction action plans owned by each SLT member   

• High level agency reduction action plan overseen by the Strategic Head of 

People & Talent 

• People & Talent initiative of ‘deep dive’ workshops with Department 

Management Teams to review all agency posts held monthly led by the 

Strategic Resourcing Lead 

• Monitor, control and limit all new agency bookings and extensions in 

partnership with agency provider. 

• Agency Watch - monitor agency assignments over 12 months and over 

£200/per day rate. 

• Renegotiating agency rates in line with salary equivalents in partnership 

with agency provider. 

• Move high cost interims/consultants to lower cost frameworks or apply 

alternative arrangements. 

• Provision of People & Talent strategic advice where alternative resourcing 

arrangements are being investigated. 

• Use People & Talent inhouse expertise to reduce executive agency 

advertising costs 

• Increase use of the apprenticeship levy and other creative resourcing 

solutions – e.g. ‘Earn while you learn’ and ‘workplace degree scheme’  

• Increase ambitions for Get Ahead to ‘grow our own’ talent and reduce 

churn   

• Progressing integration of agency workers into IBC HR management 

system for improved monitoring and analytics. 

 
15. As set out in this report, we are seeing the benefits of the changes that have 

been implemented and based on the commitments provided by departmental 

leads for the planned reduction in agency usage for each of their respective 

service areas, we are confident that we will continue to see a significant 

reduction  that will bring us in line with the 50% agency reduction target set by 

year end. 

 

 
 

Page 71



 
 

Page 72



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:    Public Services Reform Policy and   

   Accountability Committee   
 
Date:     16 November 2020 
 

Subject:    Workforce Opportunities     

 
Report of:     Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People and Talent  
 
Responsible Director:  Rhian Davies, Director of Resources   
 

 
Summary 
 

This report provides an update on learning and development opportunities aimed at 

the H&F workforce.  

 

 
Recommendations 
 

1. That the committee notes the progress made and plans going forward. 
 

 
Wards Affected 
None 
 

H&F Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Priorities  

Creating a compassionate council Our learning and development 
opportunities align with the council’s vision 
to improve employment and career 
pathways opportunities for the workforce 
and in turn the local community particularly 
in light of our commitment to the workforce 
to ‘grow your own’ initiatives via our Get 
Ahead Programme and upskilling in terms 
of future skills and employability.  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient During the pandemic we have reviewed 
our offer in terms of virtual learning where 
appropriate which has enabled us to 
reduce our spend on traditional learning 
initiatives and re-focus on transformation 
learning initiatives 

Taking pride in H&F The progress offered by way of H&F’s Earn 
While You Learn initiative offers both 
internal and external opportunities for 
future employment skills and personal 
development which aligns with the vision of 
making H&F a great place to work. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



 
Contact Officer: 
 
Name:  Mary Lamont   
Position: Strategic Head of People & Talent   
Email:  mary.lamont@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Appendices – None 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report - None 
 

 
Background  

 

This report provides an update on learning and development opportunities aimed at 

the H&F workforce.  

1. This year, we have launched H&F’s Academy Earn While You Learn (EWYL).  

EWYL encompasses both apprenticeships and internships and is our bold 

ambition to commit to "Every resident in H&F having the chance of an 

apprenticeship or work placement….so that they can maintain the skills and 

confidence they need to find the career that is right for them.”   

 

2. EWYL also supports the personal development and growth of the Council’s 

workforce. 

 
3. This paper provides an outline on our progress in delivering our bold ambition 

and updates on the progress of our very successful leadership programmes 

namely Future Leaders, World Class Manager (WCM) and more recently 

Emerging Leaders. 

 
Measurement/performance  
 
4. The success of our learning and development offer is measured through 

internal progression shown in workforce analytics data. In addition, officers are 

developing staff sentiment surveys which will be launched towards the end of 

this year and will be benchmarked using the engagement index from the Best 

Companies survey undertaken in 2018. 

 

5. We will also measure success against the plans and outputs that will be 

developed as part of the emerging tackling racial inequality work stream. 

 
6. All learning is supported by evaluation and this data is also collected and 

analysed in terms of any future offers. 

 
 
 

Page 74



KEY HEADLINES 
 

H&F Academy Earn While You Learn (apprenticeship programmes) seeks to 

maximise apprenticeship completions, encourage borough residents to work 

for the Council and improve the skills and qualifications of the workforce. 

 

 We currently employ 70 apprentices (20 residents, 50 existing employees) 

with (projected 104 in 20/21).  Of the 70, 41 are new starts this year. 

 We are performing at a rate of 1.42% (apprenticeships as a % of the total 

workforce including schools) against a government target of 2.3% 

 Approximately 60% of our Apprenticeship Levy is committed with 

approximately £243,500 spent to date and £352,000 in the pipeline  

 Appendix 1 provides a detailed breakdown of programme numbers, duration, 

associated costs and some key benefits. 

 Appendix 2 provides metrics as of end March 2020. 

 

World Class Manager (WCM) offers all Council officers with staff line 

management responsibilities a people management qualification.  

 

 76 managers have completed World Class Manager since its launch in 2018. 

 WCM undertake an evaluation for each cohort.  The results and improvement 

rates are included at Appendix 1.  Highlights include: 

o Increased my impact as a manager (92.3% respondents)  

o Improved the way the goals are set for managers and their teams 

(92.3%)  

o More impactful appraisals (100%) 

o Improved time management (92.3%) 

o Improved team briefings (80.7%)  

o More effective meetings (100%)  

o Better understanding of customer needs and how to meet them 

(92.3%)  

o Can create a high performing team (96.2%) 

o Development of themselves and their teams (92.3%) 

o Improved relationship with my manager (92.3%) 

o Improved presentation skills (92.3%) 

o Ability to think and plan more strategically (96.2%) 

 

 66 managers have commenced World Class Manager this year (Cohort 3). 

 As a result of the World Class Manager offer, a regular managers network, 

run by WCM alumni, is now fully embedded, held on a monthly basis and 

supported by managers who have completed the course 

 We are now planning to launch World Class Manager II early next year 

 

Page 75



Future Leaders is a sponsorship leadership programme, whereby the strategic 

leadership team and Cabinet nominated future talent to compete for this 

leadership development course 

 

 The first cohort of Future Leaders was launched in 2019. 

 15 candidates were nominated by members of the senior leadership team and 

Cabinet Members. 

 The graduation event is planned to be scheduled following the end of the 

programme in May 2021. 

 Since the launch in 2019, of the 15 candidates, 27% have experienced some 

form of career progression (successfully appointed to a more senior graded 

role or on a Get Ahead opportunity). 

 We are due to launch Cohort 2 of Future Leaders in April 2021. 

Emerging Leaders 
 

 A brand-new management development offer launched this year hosted by 

Solace in Business (part of the SOLACE group, a well-established 

consultancy specialising in supporting the public sector) which will offer 

learners an accreditation from the Institute of Leadership and Management 

(ILM) of a Level 5 Diploma.  

Get Ahead Programme is the Chief Executive’s signature development 

programme offering Council staff the chance to get ahead by trialling jobs 

(fixed term ‘acting up’ opportunities); accessing additional development 

courses; self-promotion through their Delve profile (Office 365) 

 137 employees are currently active on the Get Ahead register 

 197 development opportunities have been advertised since January 2019 

 109 permanent opportunities, 68 secondments and 11 Project Based 
Learning/shadowing opportunities offered since January 2019 

 It is now mandatory for all job opportunities to be advertised via Get Ahead 
before being externally advertised. 

 New development to interface Get Ahead into the Learning Zone and Power 
BI which will greatly enhance our ability to report accurately and more 
effectively on our workforce profiles with a particular focus on ethnicity and 
career progression. 
 

All staff: Learning Zone and online modules  
 

 Over 100 wellbeing, personal growth and skills online e-learning modules are 
available to staff.  A few examples include: 
 
Avoid Burning Out 
Letting Things Go  
Positive Thinking  
Work and Life Balance  

Page 76



Remote Working Myths 
Multitasking Myths 

 e-learning is available online so staff can learn at a time and day that suits 
them – perfect for learning from home and supports new ways of working 

 

 Profiling modules on a monthly basis focussing on staff wellbeing, 
productivity, digital upskilling and management development. 
 

 During Q1 and Q2 this year, of 2,034 staff, over 8,646 online modules have 
been completed via the Learning Zone.  
 

 A new online module of unconscious bias was introduced in June this year on 
a non-mandatory basis initially and analysis of completion rates is at 18%.  
We have since introduced the module as a new mandatory online course for 
all new starters and compliance rates will be monitored with a view to 
ensuring a completion rate of 95% in line with our mandatory Information 
Security and Data Protection modules. 
 

 Over 90% of staff have completed the mandatory online information security 
and data protection modules 1 and 2 
 

 Reports setting out completion rates for mandatory training are now being 
presented to SLT on a regular basis.  SLT and line managers have the ability 
to run reports and monitor compliance of direct reports via the Learning Zone 
dashboard through self-service. 
 

Employment Law training for Managers Forum 
 

 Introduction of Employment Law updates for managers forum (top 150) start 

in November and training on informal resolution, disciplinary investigations, 

report writing, and disciplinary hearings commence in early 2021. The 

purpose of this is to limit the requirement for managers to need HRBPs to 

attend every meeting, improving managers’ confidence and capability and 

enhancing the efficiency of People and Talent. 

Corporate induction & mandatory training 

 Work is currently underway to update our corporate induction online offer and 

introduce mandatory training for all staff on resident/customer service skills 

and dealing with conflict.  Chart 2 below provides details on existing 

mandatory training for new starters. 

Corporate Learning & Development - ALL H&F Staff  Where to find 
Mode of 
learning 

Completion 
Time Frames 

Refresher 
required 

 

M
A

N
D

A
TO

R
Y

 

Welcome to H&F – corporate induction day 
 

Learning Zone Virtual 12 weeks No 

Induction - Welcome to H&F Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years 

Induction - How the Council Works 
 

Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years 

Induction – Unconscious Bias and Equality & 
Diversity in the Workplace 

Learning Zone E-learning 1 week 2 years 

Page 77



Induction - Workplace Wellbeing Training Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

Induction - Data Protection Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

Induction - Information Security Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

DSE (Display Screen Equipment) Awareness 
 

Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

Health and Safety Induction 
 

Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

Induction - Fire Safety Awareness Training 
 

Learning Zone E-learning 1week 2 years  

Induction - Manual Handling Training 
 

Learning Zone E-learning 1 week 2 years  

       

Chart 2 
 
A MORE DETAILED LOOK AT EACH PROGRAMME  
 
Emerging Leaders 
 
7. The emerging leaders programme aligns with our ‘Earn as you Learn’ vision to 

develop degree level apprenticeships and an ambitious skills programme.  The 

programme aims to offer learners an accreditation from the Institute of 

Leadership and Management (ILM) of a Level 5 Diploma.   

8. The programme was launched in September 2020 via Get Ahead seeking 

applications from staff of all levels.  Successful candidates were required to 

meet set criteria and selected via an internal shortlisting process.  The training 

is being delivered by Solace who were successful in their bid to provide the 

training following a competitive procurement exercise. 

9. The programme is funded through the Apprenticeship Levy and we currently 

have a cohort of 6 managers registered as participants with an intention to 

onboard a further cohort of 6 in April 2022. 

10. The duration of the course is 23 months for a full-time employee with this being 

extended where the employee works part time.  The modules are supported 

through a variety of learning events including workshops, online learning, 

project work, tutorials and written assessments.  The expectation is that 20% of 

the working week will need to be contributed to the course by the learner.   

11. The course focuses on the development of technical and behavioural 

competencies, and upon successful completion each learner will be accredited 

with the ILM Level 5 Diploma for Leadership and Management.  

12. Modules will be covered by group workshops, online learning, project work, 

tutorials and written assessments bespoke to the public sector.  As part of the 

criteria for selection on the programme it is proposed that we consider an 

additional internal requirement for the learner to have completed the World 

Class Manager programme.  The line manager of the learner will be expected 

to attend regular sessions with the learner and tutor for each module to discuss 

the project and set targets to ensure a joined-up approach.  

Page 78



13. Cohorts will benefit from senior leaders from councils attending sessions as 

guest speakers, discussing hot topics that influence work, as well as setting 

projects for the learners, with great success stories that have seen the adoption 

of new process as a result. 

 
Future Leaders Programme 
 
14. The Future Leaders programme is our flagship leadership development 

programme, initiated by the Leader and the Chief executive and launched in 

2019 in partnership with Roffey Park, a charitable trust which is internationally 

recognised for developing innovative learning approaches that enable 

individuals to achieve their full potential both at work and in their wider lives.   

15. Candidates for the Future Leaders Programme were all nominated by the 

Senior Leadership Team and/or Councillors.  Once nominated the Future 

Leaders were required to demonstrate why they should be selected to a panel 

made up of the Chief Executive and members of the Senior Leadership Team 

either on a face to face basis or via a video link.   

16. The Future Leaders Programme needed to deviate from the original schedule 

due to COVID-19.  This resulted in the postponement of the Large Group 

Intervention (LGI) which is a group activity built into the programme.  Proposals 

will be considered for a rescheduled LGI event to be held virtually between now 

and the end of March 2021.  In the event that the LGI can go ahead it will be 

aligned to an emerging issue arising out of the pandemic and recovery. 

17. During modules 1, 2 and 3 which took place on site at Roffey Park, the Future 

Leaders group were asked to consider and identify suitable topics for further 

expert led workshops to support and build on learning from the modules. 

18. 4 expert-led workshops have been identified which can be hosted by The 

Roffey Park Institute on a virtual basis.  Delivery of these modules will be 

scheduled to take place between now and the end of March 2021. 

19. The graduation event will be scheduled in early April/May 2021 however this 

will be subject to the delivery of the LGI. 

20. Since the launch in 2019, of the 15 candidates, 27% have experienced some 

form of career progression. 

21. Subject to Covid 19 adjustment the launch of the 2nd Cohort of the Future 

Leaders Programme will in May 2021. 

Page 79



 
Figure 1. Future Leaders’ programme of events 

 
World Class Manager Programme 
 

22. The People Strategy of Hammersmith and Fulham Council places a strong 

emphasis on coaching and leadership. All staff are encouraged to challenge 

themselves and the way they work to empower the organisation and its 

residents to produce better outcomes for the H&F community. H&F have been 

working with Global Growth Institute (GGI) for three years and continues to 

benefit from the implementation of the World Class Manager blended learning 

programme.   

23. Since the launch in 2018, 142 managers have enrolled on this training.  All 

managers are expected to undertake the training and the only criteria for 

registering is that candidates are already managers. 

24. The World Class Manager is a blended course of 12 modules which includes 

key components of managerial behaviour.  

 World Class Manager Modules 

Team Development    Goal Setting 

Delivering Appraisals Managing Meetings 

Time Management Understanding Customers 

Presentation Skills Developing self and others 

Effective Communication Managing Upwards 

21
st

 Century Management Strategic Management 

 
How we implement the World Class Manager programme 
 

25. The World Class Manager programme formed part of our foundation of 

leadership and management development with the aim of providing a 

benchmark for individual management behaviour. The programme helps 

managers to critically review facets of their interaction with their employees 

and planning tasks. 

26. H&F coupled the programme with action learning sets to introduce 

opportunities for networking amongst managers and encourage managers to 

Page 80



support and challenge each other in a form of “group coaching”. Furthermore, 

the coaching approach of managers was reinforced with an intensive one-day 

introduction to Coaching delivered by an occupational psychologist. 

27. The modules are well researched, concise and pragmatic and have proved 

popular with our managers. With over 95% of managers reporting 

improvements in their management practice. 

28. The programme inspired graduates of the programme to establish a World 

Class Managers Forum to facilitate networking, knowledge sharing and 

discussion of managerial issues. This in turn has led the group to consult with 

the Senior Leadership Team and challenge support functions on the 

refinement of management policies, processes, and practice within 

Hammersmith and Fulham Council.  

29. Many graduates of the programme volunteered for prominent roles in a 

cultural transformation process ongoing at H&F called the “H&F Way” which 

aims to have a staff engagement drive to tackle key challenges around 

inclusion, behaviours, recognition, performance management and wellbeing. 

30. Graduates of the programme also play a vital role in offering mentoring to our 

National Management Trainees and other staff within H&F. 

31. Furthermore, many of the initial graduates of the programme were 

subsequently nominated for succession development in H&F’s Future 

Leaders initiative and will spearhead strategic projects for H&F Council. 

32. We are exploring a proposal to launch World Class Manager 2 which would 

be available to those that have completed World Class Manager and will 

support continued professional development. 

Get Ahead  
 

33. The Get Ahead Programme is an initiative of the Chief Executive to provide a 

platform for self-starter staff at all levels who would like to develop and grow 

their career.   Any employee of H&F is eligible to register to the Get Ahead 

Programme. 

34. The Get Ahead Programme has continued to grow in numbers from registered 

staff members, developmental opportunities and many learning activities. To 

support the Get Ahead vision we currently offer secondments, shadowing, 

project-based learning opportunities and lunch and learn workshops. 

35. The nature of our frequent opportunities, variety of placements and 

developmental opportunities offered means that we are offering staff the 

opportunity to “Get Ahead” creating a buzz for internal progression which 

aligns with our people strategy.  

36. The overarching aim of the programme is:  

Page 81



 To support staff development and career progression – optimising talent 
management.  

 To promote secondments, internal job opportunities, training and other 
career development opportunities.  

 Retain our Talent and Grow our Own. 

37. Get Ahead has had a great take up in line with the last staff survey results, 

which highlighted that staff wanted to be developed. The Get Ahead 

programme currently has 137 employees registered out of a total workforce of 

2,034 employees.  

38. The following charts below details the take up of Get Ahead based on 

department. 

 

 
 

The following chart demonstrates the ethnicity count of staff registered on Get Ahead 
by each department.   
 

 
 

39. A total of 197 developmental opportunities have been advertised since 

January 2019. As part of the ‘Get Ahead’ offer we aim to source various 

opportunities to provide to staff. These developmental opportunities include 

secondments, permanent and fixed term opportunities, shadowing and Project 

Based Learning opportunities.  

Finance 
8% 

Resource 
13% 

Environment  
21% 

Economy 
32% 

Childrens 
15% 

ASC 
11% 

 EMPLOYEES ON GET AHEAD 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Finance

Resource

Childrens

ASC

Environment

Economy

Get Ahead Ethnicity via Directorate  

Other Not Known Asian Mixed Black White

Page 82



40. The table below demonstrates the current figures of job positions that have 

either been successfully filled or are currently still in progress based on 

directorates.  

Directorate Recruitment 
in Progress 

Successful 
Recruitment 

Unsuccessful 
Recruitment 

Grand Total 

Children's Services (CHS) 3 7 9 19 

The Environment Department 9 11 17 37 

Social Care (ASC) 5 3 6 14 

The Economy Department 35 32 18 85 

Resources 1 14 12 27 

Finance 3 10 2 15 

Grand Total 56 77 64 197 

 

41. The following table below demonstrates the breakdown of the types of Get 

Ahead opportunities:  

No. of Project Based 
Learning Opportunities 

No. of Secondment 
Recruitment 
Opportunities  

No. of 
Permanent 
Recruitment 
Opportunities 

Grand 
Total 

11 69 117 197 

 
  

 

 
42. The Get Ahead programme has successfully seen 77 employees appointed 

into Get Ahead roles including the current Director of Finance and Director of 

Resources who sit in the strategic leadership team 

43. The programme has given employees the opportunity to Get Ahead in their 

career, either progressing into senior roles or making a lateral career move. 

Childrens
Services

Finance Resources Social Care The Economy
The

Environment

White 5% 5% 5% 1% 18% 9%

Not Known 4% 4% 4% 0% 7% 3%

Mixed 0% 3% 0% 1% 1% 0%

Black 1% 1% 7% 1% 9% 3%

Asian 0% 1% 0% 0% 4% 1%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%

GET AHEAD ETHNICITY 

Asian Black Mixed Not Known White

Page 83



This in turn has initiated the development of some amazing success stories of 

career progression and opportunities for employees at all levels.  

44. It is now mandatory to advertise all vacancies on Get Ahead and all 

opportunities are published weekly via our corporate communication platform. 

OUR LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT VISION FOR 2021/22  
 

45. We are currently developing our vision for 2021/22 which will be aligned to our 

People Plan and transformational new ways of working: 

 Learning & development needs will be identified through a new appraisal 

process with personal development plans 

 There will be a specific focus on digital transformation and creating a 

customer-centric culture 

 Priorities will be informed from intelligence gathered through regular 

employee engagement sentiment surveys. 

 Outcomes resulting from the work associated with the H&F Way working 

groups and the newly established Race Equality Groups  

 Evaluation of return of investment. 

46. Our H&F corporate learning plan for 2021/22 will be launched before the end 

of March 2021 in line with Council vision and values. 

Page 84


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 H&F Way Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement

	6 Workforce Efficiency - Reducing Agency Spend
	7 Workforce Opportunities

